

MINUTES OF COUNCIL

MEETING DATE Tuesday, 10 April 2018

MEMBERS PRESENT: Councillor Mark Perks (Mayor), Councillor Margaret Lees

(Deputy Mayor) and Councillors Aaron Beaver, Eric Bell, Martin Boardman, Alistair Bradley, Charlie Bromilow, Terry Brown, Paul Clark, Jean Cronshaw, Alan Cullens, John Dalton, Christopher France, Gordon France, Margaret France, Jane Fitzsimons, Anthony Gee, Danny Gee, Tom Grav. Keith Iddon. Mark Jarnell. Hasina Khan, Zara Khan, Paul Leadbetter, Roy Lees, Sheila Long, Adrian Lowe, Marion Lowe, Matthew Lynch, Greg Morgan, June Molyneaux, Alistair Morwood, Mick Muncaster. Steve Murfitt. Beverley Murray. Debra Platt, Joyce Snape, Kim Snape, Richard Toon, Paul Walmsley, John Walker, Alan Whittaker

Peter Wilson

**OFFICERS:** Chris Sinnott (Director (Early Intervention and Support)),

Asim Khan (Director (Customer and Digital)), Rebecca Huddleston (Director (Policy and Governance)), Chris Moister (Head of Legal, Democratic & HR Services) and Ruth Rimmington (Democratic and Member Services

Team Leader)

**APOLOGIES:** Councillors Henry Caunce, Doreen Dickinson,

Graham Dunn and Ralph Snape

### 17.C.503 Minutes of meeting Tuesday, 27 February 2018 of Council

Decision: That the minutes of the last Council meeting held on 23 January 2018 be approved as a correct record for signature by the Mayor.

## 17.C.504 Declarations of Any Interests

There were no declarations of interests received.

### 17.C.505 Mayoral Announcements

The Mayor referred to the forthcoming elections, wishing all Members well in contesting their councillor seats. In particular he referred to Councillors Charlie Bromilow, Mark Jarnell and Richard Toon who were not seeking re-election and wished them well for the future.

Councillors Alistair Bradley and Alan Cullens paid tribute to the work of the retiring Councillors.

### 17.C.506 Public Questions

There were no public questions for consideration.

#### 17.C.507 Executive Cabinet

Councillor Alistair Bradley, Executive Leader presented a general report of the Executive Cabinet meetings held on 18 January, 15 February and 15 March.

Councillor Alistair Bradley, Executive Leader proposed, Councillor Peter Wilson, Executive Member for Resources, seconded the **DECISION – that the report be noted.** 

# 17.C.508Revenue and Capital Budget Monitoring 2017/18 Report 3 (end of December 2017)

Councillor Peter Wilson, Executive Member (Resources) presented the report of the Chief Finance Officer which set out the provisional revenue and capital outturn figures for the Council as compared against the budgets and efficiency savings targets set for the financial year 2017/18.

Councillor Peter Wilson, Executive Member for Resources proposed, Councillor Alistair Bradley, Executive Leader seconded the **DECISION – to** 

- 1. Note the full year forecast position for the 2017/18 revenue budget and capital investment programme.
- 2. Note the forecast position on the Council's reserves.
- 3. Approve the contribution of £60,000 from in-year revenue underspends to the Buildings Maintenance Reserve to finance one-off costs relating to the Council's maintenance of offices and buildings.
- 4. Approve the contribution of £100,000 from in-year revenue underspends to the Change Management Reserve to finance one-off redundancy and pension strain costs arising from transformation and shared service strategies.
- 5. Approve the contribution of £40,000 from in-year revenue underspends to fund the revenue implications of future planning appeals.
- 6. Approve the use of £40,000 from in-year revenue underspends to provide the council with external expertise for the furthering of income generation.
- 7. Approve the contribution of £130,000 from in-year revenue underspends to enable the modernisation of the Council's ICT and Streetscene services.
- 8. Approve the budget changes to the capital programme outlined in paragraph 70.

### 17.C.509 Overview and Scrutiny Committee and Task and Finish Groups

Councillor John Walker, Chair of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee presented a general report of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee held on 25 January and 22 March, the Overview and Scrutiny Performance Panel held on 8 March and Task Group update.

Councillor John Walker, Chair of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee proposed, Councillor Roy Lees, Vice Chair, seconded the **DECISION** – that the report be noted.

#### 17.C.510 Governance Committee

Councillor Paul Leadbetter, Chair of the Governance Committee presented a general report on the work of the Committee meeting on 24 January and 21 March.

Councillor Paul Leadbetter, Chair of the Governance Committee proposed, Councillor Anthony Gee, Vice Chair, seconded the **DECISION – that the report be noted.** 

## 17.C.511 Electoral Review of Chorley Council - Draft Council Size Submission

Councillor Alistair Bradley Executive Leader, advised that the first meeting of the Electoral Review of Chorley Council Committee took place on 7 March 2018. At that meeting, the committee considered evidence that is to be presented as part of the council's submission to the LGBCE.

The LGBCE will re-draw ward boundaries so that they meet their statutory criteria. The council will have the opportunity to put forward its ideas in two phases of public consultation.

Councillor Alan Cullens, Leader of the Conservative Group, proposed an amendment, that Chorley Council should comprise of 39 councillors and move to all out elections. This would save the council a considerable sum of money. Councillor Martin Boardman, Shadow Executive Member (Resources) seconded the amendment.

The proposal was put to the vote and **LOST**.

Members considered the disadvantages to all out elections, particularly the political instability this could lead to. Having elections by thirds enabled change to be more gradual and for councillors to build experience on each of the committees. This also acted as a buffer for populism.

Members discussed the importance of having enough councillors to discharge the functions of the council, and to hold the Executive to account.

Councillor Alistair Bradley, Executive Leader proposed an amendment to the council size submission document. On page 3 under the 'Proposal' heading there is a brief summary of the approach taken to develop and agree the council size proposal. The Council's submission has been developed by a cross party committee of 9 councillors. A meeting of the Electoral Review of Chorley Council Committee took place on the 7 March 2018, following a review of evidence, a positive discussion and due consideration the committee unanimously agreed that the council size could be reduced from 47 to be 42 members with the frequency of elections continuing by thirds.

Councillor Alistair Bradley, Executive Leader proposed, Councillor Peter Wilson, Executive Member for Resources, seconded the amended substantive motion, the **DECISION** 

To approve the amended council submission on the future size and electoral cycle of Chorley Council, as agreed unanimously at the Electoral Review of Chorley Council Committee, that Chorley Council should –

- comprise of 42 councillors, and
- continue to undertake its elections by thirds

## 17.C.512Council Appointments

Agreement was sought to a new outside body appointment for Chorley Football Club Community Trust.

Councillor Alistair Bradley, Executive Leader proposed, Councillor Peter Wilson, Deputy Leader, seconded and it was RESOLVED - To appoint the Executive Member (Early Intervention and Support) to Chorley Football Club Community Trust.

## 17.C.513 Questions Asked under Council Procedure Rule 8 (if any)

There were no questions for consideration under Procedure Rule 8.

# 17.C.514To consider the Notices of Motion (if any) given in accordance with Council procedure Rule 10

There were no motions for consideration under Procedure Rule 10.

## 17.C.515To consider petitions (if any) presented in accordance with Council procedure Rule 23

There were no petitions presented in accordance with Council procedure Rule 23.

## 17.C.516 Exclusion of the Public and Press

Councillor Alistair Bradley, Executive Leader proposed, Councillor Peter Wilson, Deputy Leader seconded the DECISION that the press and public be excluded for the following items of business due to the disclosure of exempt information under Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act.

# 17.C.517Acquisition of Former Hyatt Restaurant, Dole Lane and Proposed Lease to Chorley Little Theatre

Councillor Peter Wilson, Executive Member (Resources) presented the report of the Director of Business, Development and Growth. The report sought approval to purchase the building known as the former Hyatt Restaurant premises on the terms indicated in the report and shown edged red on the attached plan.

The report also sought approval for a new Lease to be granted to the Chorley Little Theatre for the Hyatt Premises to be able to be occupied in connection with their use of the Chorley Little Theatre for studio space, rehearsals and storage.

Councillor Peter Wilson, Executive Member for Resources proposed, Councillor Alistair Bradley, Executive Leader seconded the **DECISION** –

- 1. That Council allocate the budget to be used for the purposes of purchasing the freehold of the Hyatt, 1 Dole Lane, Chorley.
- 2. That Council note that on 15 March the Executive Cabinet resolved a. To proceed with the freehold purchase of the Hyatt Premises, 1 Dole Lane, Chorley, PR7 2RL within the time frame so that preparations can be implemented by the Chorley Little Theatre for expansion and rehearsal rooms.
  - b. That authority is to be delegated to the Executive Member for Resources to negotiate the terms of the lease with the Chorley Little Theatre in accordance with those provisionally agreed and contained at paragraph 17. c. That the Head of Legal, Democratic and HR Services be authorised to complete the documentation for both the purchase of the freehold from the existing vendor and complete the documentation for a Lease on terms to be negotiated in accordance with paragraph 2 to the Chorley Little Theatre.

Mayor	Date
Mayor	Da